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March 30, 2022 

VIA EDIS 

The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street, SW, Room 112-A 
Washington, DC 20436 
 

Re: In the Matter of Certain Mobile Electronic Devices, Inv. No. 337-TA-___   
 
Dear Secretary Barton: 
 

Enclosed for filing, please find documents in support of a request by Maxell, Ltd. 
(“Complainant”) that the U.S. International Trade Commission institute an investigation pursuant 
to Section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, concerning certain mobile electronic devices. 
We have included a separate letter requesting confidential treatment of the Complaint and certain 
exhibits included with this filing. We have enclosed public versions of the Complaint and certain 
confidential exhibits. 

In accordance with the Commission’s modified filing requirements, 85 Fed. Reg. 15798 
(dated Mar. 19, 2020), please find enclosed the documents in support of Complainants’ request, 
including the following: 

1. One (1) electronic copy of Complainant’s Verified Complaint, pursuant to 
Commission Rule 210.8(a)(1)(i); 

2. One (1) electronic copy of Complainant’s letter and certification requesting 
confidential treatment of the Complaint and several confidential exhibits, pursuant 
to Commission Rules 210.5(d) and 201.6(b); 

3. One (1) electronic copy of Complainant’s Statement on the Public Interest, pursuant 
to Commission Rules 210.8(a)(1)(i) and 201.8(b); 

4. One (1) electronic copy of the public exhibits to the Verified Complaint, pursuant 
to Commission Rule 210.8(a)(1)(ii), including: 
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a. One (1) electronic copy of certified versions of each of U.S. Patent Nos. 
7,199,821; 7,324,487; 8,170,394; 8,982,086; 10,129,590; and 10,244,284 
(collectively, the “Asserted Patents”); 

b. One (1) electronic copy of certified versions of each recorded assignment 
for each Asserted Patent; 

c. One (1) electronic copy of certified versions of the U.S. Patent and 
Trademark Office prosecution history for each Asserted Patent; 

5. One (1) electronic copy of the confidential exhibits to the Verified Complaint, 
pursuant to Commission Rule 210.8(a)(1)(ii); and 

6. One (1) electronic copy of each patent and applicable pages of each technical 
reference mentioned in the prosecution history of each Asserted Patent, pursuant to 
Commission Rule 210.12(c)(2). 

Complainant confirms that it will serve copies of the non-confidential versions of the 
Complaint and all associated exhibits and appendices upon the institution of this investigation on 
the proposed Respondents consistent with 19 C.F.R. part 201 (including 19 C.F.R. §201.16) and 
the Temporary Procedures. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. Please contact me with any questions regarding 
this submission. 

 
       Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Jamie B. Beaber 

Counsel for Complainant Maxell, Ltd. 
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March 30, 2022 

VIA EDIS 

The Honorable Lisa R. Barton 
Secretary to the Commission 
U.S. International Trade Commission 
500 E Street, SW, Room 112-A 
Washington, DC 20436 
 

Re: In the Matter of Certain Mobile Electronic Devices, Inv. No. 337-TA-___   
 
Dear Secretary Barton: 
 

Pursuant to Commission Rule 201.6, Complainant Maxell, Ltd. respectfully requests 
confidential treatment of certain confidential business information contained in Complainants’ 
Confidential Complaint and Confidential Exhibits 13, 14, 27, 28, 60, and 64 filed herewith. 

The information in the Complaint and exhibits for which Complainant seeks confidential 
treatment consists of proprietary commercial and personal information, including: 

(i) a confidential list of licensees to the Asserted Patents (Confidential Exhibits 13, 
14); 

(ii) confidential terms of licensing agreements and negotiations (Complaint ¶¶ 95-
108, 113, 115-119, 207; Confidential Exhibits 14, 27, 28, 60, 64). 

The proprietary information described herein qualifies as confidential business information 
under Commission Rule 201.6 because substantially-identical information is not available to the 
public, because the disclosure of this information would cause substantial competitive harm to 
Complainant, Respondents, and third parties, and because the disclosure of this information would 
likely impede the Commission’s efforts and ability to obtain similar information in the future. 
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Thank you for your attention to this matter. Please contact me with any questions regarding 
this request for confidential treatment. 

       Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 

Jamie B. Beaber 

Counsel for Complainant Maxell, Ltd. 
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

In the Matter of: 

CERTAIN MOBILE ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

 

Investigation No. _________________ 

 
COMPLAINANT MAXELL, LTD.’S STATEMENT  

REGARDING THE PUBLIC INTEREST UNDER 19 C.F.R. § 210.8(b) 
 

Complainant Maxell, Ltd. (“Maxell”) hereby submits this Statement Regarding the Public 

Interest pursuant to Commission Rule 210.8(b), 19 C.F.R. § 210.8, regarding the remedial orders 

requested in Maxell’s Complaint against proposed respondents Lenovo Group Ltd., Lenovo 

(United States) Inc., and Motorola Mobility LLC (collectively, “Respondents”). Maxell seeks a 

permanent limited exclusion order to preclude Respondents from importing into the United 

States certain mobile electronic devices that infringe one or more claims of United States Patent 

Nos. 7,199,821; 7,324,487; 8,170,394; 8,982,086; 10,129,590; and 10,244,284 (collectively, the 

“Asserted Patents”).1 Maxell also seeks a permanent cease and desist order prohibiting 

Respondents, their subsidiaries, related companies, and agents from engaging in the importation, 

sale for importation, marketing and/or advertising, distribution, offering for sale, sale, use after 

importation, sale after importation, or other transfer within the United States of certain mobile 

electronic devices that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents. 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The requested relief is in the public interest because it would serve the purpose of 

enforcing United States intellectual property rights. The Commission has recognized that 

                                                 
1 None of the Asserted Patents is a Standards Essential Patent (“SEP”), none was declared essential to a standards 
development body, and none is essential to a promulgated standard. 
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remedial orders should only be withheld in “limited circumstances in which the statutory public 

interest concerns are so great as to trump the public interest in enforcement of intellectual 

property rights.” Certain Baseband Processor Chips & Chipsets, Transmitter & Receiver 

(Radio) Chips, Power Control Chips, & Prods. Containing Same, Including Cellular Telephone 

Handsets, Inv. No. 337-TA-543, Comm’n Op. on Remedy, Public Interest, & Bonding at 148-53 

(June 19, 2007). The Commission has repeatedly held that such limited circumstances are not 

triggered by the types of mobile electronic devices that Maxell seeks to exclude here. See, e.g., 

Certain Elec. Digital Media Devices & Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-796, Comm’n 

Op. at 114-115, 119-121 (Sept. 6, 2013).  

Further, because Maxell’s licensees and other non-Respondent companies also supply the 

market with mobile electronic devices (including Apple, BLU, ZTE, and others), and because 

Respondents themselves will be able to continue supplying non-accused products 

notwithstanding this Investigation, consumers would not face any shortage of like or competitive 

products in the United States. 

II. USE OF THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS IN THE UNITED STATES 

The Accused Products are mobile electronic devices that are imported and sold in the 

United States by or on behalf of Respondents under the Motorola brand name. The Accused 

Products are manufactured abroad and sold to consumers throughout the United States. 

III. THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS DO NOT PRESENT ANY PUBLIC HEALTH, 
SAFETY, OR WELFARE CONCERNS RELATING TO THE REQUESTED 
REMEDIAL ORDERS 

Consumer electronic devices such as the Accused Products do not implicate public 

health, safety, or welfare concerns. The Commission has repeatedly held this to be true. See, e.g., 

Certain Mobile Devices, Associated Software, & Components Thereof, Inv. No. 337-TA-744, 

Comm’n Op., 2012 WL 3715788, at *18 (June 5, 2012) (holding that the exclusion of infringing 
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mobile devices “will not have a significant adverse impact on the public health, safety, or 

welfare”).  

Public health, safety, or welfare concerns generally arise only in investigations involving 

pharmaceuticals, medical equipment, green technology products, or other products that have the 

potential to affect people’s health, safety, and welfare. The Accused Products do not fall within 

any of these categories. To the contrary, they are used primarily for personal communications, 

internet browsing, entertainment, social media, and business.  

Furthermore, as explained below, like and competing products that perform similar 

functions as Respondents’ Accused Products are readily available to consumers in the United 

States. Thus, the requested relief would not implicate any public health, safety, or welfare 

concern. See, e.g., Minnesota Min. & Mfg. Co. v. Carapace Inc., No. CIV. 4-93-392, 1993 WL 

528166, at *6 (D. Minn. Oct. 29, 1993).  

Accordingly, access to the Accused Products does not implicate any meaningful public 

health, safety, or welfare concern. Indeed, the requested relief serves the public interest because, 

as previously recognized by the Commission, there is a strong public interest in protecting 

intellectual property rights. See, e.g., Certain Baseband Processor Chips, Inv. No. 337-TA-543, 

Comm’n Op. at l36-37 (June 19, 2007). Thus, there is a strong public interest in protecting 

Maxell’s IP rights, and that interest far outweighs any hypothetical adverse effect on the public. 

IV. NUMEROUS LIKE OR DIRECTLY COMPETITIVE ARTICLES ARE 
AVAILABLE TO SATISFY DEMAND FOR THE EXCLUDED PRODUCTS  

No public interest concerns exist where the market contains an adequate supply of  

competitive or substitute products for those subject to a remedial order. See, e.g., Certain Lens 

Fitted Film Packages, Inv. No. 337-TA-406, Comm’n Op. at 18 (June 28, 1999).  
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Here, the Accused Products only represent a portion of Respondents’ product offerings, 

and Respondents represent only a portion of a competitive market for the manufacture and sale 

of mobile electronic devices. The industry for mobile electronic devices is highly competitive. 

See Lenovo Group Limited 2020/21 Annual Report, at 24 (“The Group operates in a highly 

competitive industry which faces rapid changes in market trends, consumer preferences and 

constantly evolving technological advances in hardware performance, software features and 

functionality.”). For example, from the third Quarter of 2020 through the fourth Quarter of 2021, 

Respondents held less than 15% of the market share for U.S. smartphone shipments. See 

https://www.counterpointresearch.com/us-market-smartphone-share/. Thus, the third parties that 

account for more than three quarters of the smartphones in the U.S., including Maxell’s 

licensees, could ramp up production to replace any excluded products of Respondents. Original 

equipment manufacturers that provide like or directly competitive smartphones and tablets 

include Apple, ZTE, Huawei, BLU Products, ASUS, Samsung, and LG Electronics. 

Accordingly, Respondents’ Accused Products could and would be replaced on the market if the 

relief sought here were granted.  

Further, remedial orders would not have an adverse impact on competitive production in 

the United States as the Accused Products are made overseas. See, e.g., 

https://manufacturingglobal.com/lean-manufacturing/motorola-becomes-latest-manufacturing-

giant-move-operations-india (“At present, Motorola manufactures its smartphones in China and 

in Latin America such as Brazil. It, however, has a global software R&D facility in Bengaluru”). 

See Certain Digital Televisions & Certain Prods. Containing Same & Methods of Using Same, 

Inv. No. 337-TA-617, Comm’n Op. at 15 (Apr. 23, 2009) (stating that the consideration of the 

production of like or directly competitive articles does not weigh against issuance of a remedy 
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when: (i) there is a variety of other similar products available domestically; and (ii) most of the 

types of products at issue are manufactured in foreign countries).  

As set forth above, to the extent necessary, Maxell’s licensees and other third-parties 

have the capacity to replace Respondents’ volume of production of infringing products in the 

United States market without delay. Non-accused mobile devices will also continue to be 

available from Respondent as well as non-Respondent suppliers. Consumers would continue to 

have access to non-accused products from Maxell’s licensees, the Proposed Respondents, and 

third parties in amounts sufficient to meet the demand.  

V. REMEDIAL ORDERS WOULD NOT NEGATIVELY IMPACT U.S. 
CONSUMERS  

The requested relief will not materially negatively impact United States consumers. If 

Respondents’ Accused Products are excluded, U.S. consumers will continue to have numerous 

available options for mobile electronic devices, including devices sold by Maxell’s licensees. 

While the requested relief may reduce consumer choice, such reduction is not in itself a 

sufficient basis to deny a remedy. Certain Digital Televisions & Certain Prods. Containing Same 

& Methods of Using Same, Inv. No. 337-TA-617, Comm’n Op. at 16 (Apr. 23, 2009).  

VI. CONCLUSION  

Issuance of Maxell’s requested remedies will support the strong public interest in 

protecting intellectual property rights. That interest is not outweighed by any adverse impact to 

the U.S. public that may hypothetically result from issuance of the remedial orders, particularly 

in view of the readily available alike or directly competitive products. Thus, the remedies sought 

in Maxell’s Complaint, filed concurrently herewith, will not adversely affect the public interest. 

Dated: March 30, 2022  
 Jamie B. Beaber 

Alan M. Grimaldi 
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I. INTRODUCTION 

1. Complainant Maxell, Ltd. (“Maxell”) files this Complaint pursuant to Section 337 

of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337 (“Section 337”). 

2. Maxell brings this action to remedy violations of Section 337 arising from the 

unlawful and unauthorized importation into the United States, the sale for importation into the 

United States, and the sale within the United States after importation of certain mobile electronic 

devices (the “Accused Products”). 

3. The Accused Products infringe one or more claims of United States Patent Nos. 

7,199,821 (the “’821 Patent”); 7,324,487 (the “’487 Patent”); 8,170,394 (the “’394 Patent”); 

8,982,086 (the “’086 Patent”); 10,129,590 (the “’590 Patent”); and 10,244,284 (the “’284 

Patent”) (collectively, the “Asserted Patents”). The Asserted Patents are attached to this 

Complaint as Exhibits 1 – 6. 

4. The Accused Products infringe at least the following claims of the Asserted 

Patents in violation of Section 337(a)(1)(B)(i) and 35 U.S.C. § 271(a), and/or (b), either literally 

or under the doctrine of equivalents, as explained more fully herein and in the appended claim 

charts: 

Asserted Patents Asserted Claims1 

’821 Patent 1, 6, 7 

’487 Patent 1, 3, 4 

’394 Patent 2, 4, 5, 7, 8 

’086 Patent 1, 2, 4, 6, 9-13, 15 

                                                 
1 Bolded numbers denote independent claims. 
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Asserted Patents Asserted Claims1 

’590 Patent 1, 5, 9, 11-14, 16-22, 23-25 

’284 Patent 1, 3, 4, 7, 9, 10, 18-20 

 
5. The proposed respondents are Lenovo Group Ltd., Lenovo (United States) Inc., 

and Motorola Mobility LLC. Collectively, these proposed respondents are referred to here as 

“Respondents.” 

6. On information and belief, and as set forth more fully in this Complaint and the 

claim charts appended hereto, each of the Respondents imports into the United States, sells for 

importation into the United States, or sells in the United States after importation Accused 

Products that directly infringe at least one claim of the Asserted Patents under 35 U.S.C. 

§ 271(a). 

7. In addition, as set forth more fully in this Complaint and the claim charts 

appended hereto, each of the Respondents induces others (including without limitation their 

customers, end users, partners, affiliates, subsidiaries, importers, distributors, and/or sellers) to 

infringe the asserted method claims through at least their user guides, online instruction 

materials, and websites that instruct how to use the Accused Products, thereby infringing under 

35 U.S.C. § 271(b).  

8. Each of Respondents had knowledge of the ’821, ’487, ’590, and ’284 Patents 

prior to the filing of this Complaint through the parties’ prior dealings, as outlined further herein. 

In addition, each of Respondents has knowledge of these patents by virtue of the filing of this 

Complaint. Respondents, with knowledge of these patents, have actively induced and are 

continuing to actively induce others (including without limitation their customers, end users, 
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partners, affiliates, subsidiaries, importers, distributors, and/or sellers) to infringe the asserted 

method claims.  

9. As relief for Respondents’ unfair acts, Maxell seeks the following: (a) an 

investigation into Respondents’ violations of Section 337; (b) a public hearing concerning 

whether Respondents have violated Section 337; (c) a permanent limited exclusion order barring 

from entry into the United States the Accused Products that infringe the Asserted Patents; (d) a 

permanent cease-and-desist order prohibiting the importation, sale, sale for importation, offer for 

sale, and soliciting of the sale in the United States of the Accused Products that infringe at least 

one claim of the Asserted Patents; (e) the imposition of a bond on importation and sales of 

infringing products during the 60-day Presidential review period pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j); 

and (f) such other relief as the Commission deems proper. 

10. A domestic industry exists as the result of activities and investments in the United 

States related to products that practice the Asserted Patents. Maxell’s licensees have, in the 

United States, made significant investments in plant, equipment, labor and capital, and made 

substantial investments in engineering and research and development related to products 

protected by the Asserted Patents. These activities are set forth in more detail in Section IX, 

infra. 

II. THE PARTIES 

A. Complainant 

11. Complainant Maxell, Ltd. is a Japanese corporation with a registered place of 

business at 1 Koizumi, Oyamazaki, Oyamazaki-cho, Otokuni-gun, Kyoto, Japan. Maxell is the 

sole owner by assignment of all rights, title, and interest in each of the Asserted Patents. 
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Certified copies of the recorded assignments of the Asserted Patents are attached as Exhibits 7 – 

12. 

12. Founded in 1961 as Maxell Electric Industrial Co., Ltd., Maxell is a leading 

global manufacturer of information storage media products, including magnetic tapes, optical 

discs, and battery products such as lithium ion rechargeable micro batteries and alkaline dry 

batteries, and the company has over 50 years of experience producing industry-leading 

recordable media and energy products for both the consumer and the professional markets. 

Exhibit 14, ¶ 5. 

13. More recently, Maxell has been focused on developing wireless charging 

technology and memory card technology and related components utilized in mobile devices. Id. 

at ¶ 12. 

14. In the 1970s, Maxell established a factory in Georgia, its first factory in the 

United States. At that facility, Maxell manufactured audio and video cassette tapes. At one time, 

Maxell also had a factory in San Diego, California. Id. at ¶ 13. 

15. Maxell has built an international reputation for excellence and reliability, for 

pioneering the power supplies and digital recording for today’s mobile and multi-media devices, 

and leading the electronics industry in the fields of storage media and batteries. 

16. Since being one of the first companies to develop alkaline batteries and Blu Ray 

camcorder discs, Maxell has always assured its customers of industry leading product innovation 

and is one of the world’s foremost suppliers of memory, power, audio, and visual goods. Id. at ¶ 

11. Maxell’s well-recognized logo and iconic “blown away” image exemplify the reputation 

Maxell carefully developed in these markets. 
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17. In 2009 Hitachi, Ltd. assigned much of its consumer product-facing intellectual 

property to Hitachi Consumer Electronics Co., Ltd. Then, in 2013, Hitachi Consumer Electronics 

Co., Ltd. assigned the intellectual property, including the patents in this case, to Hitachi Maxell, 

Ltd., which later assigned the patents to Maxell as a result of a reorganization and name change. 

This reorganization was an effort to align its intellectual property with the licensing, business 

development, and research and development efforts of Maxell, including in the mobile and 

mobile-media device market (Hitachi, Ltd. and Hitachi Consumer Electronics Co., Ltd. are 

referred to herein collectively as “Hitachi”). 

18. Recently, Maxell opened Maxell Research and Development of America, LLC 

(“MRDA”) in Marshall, Texas, pursuant to a 2014 joint development agreement with a Marshall-

based company. Id. at ¶ 14. 

19. Maxell continues to sell products in the mobile device market including wireless 

charging solutions, wireless flash drives, multimedia players, storage devices, and headphones. 

Maxell also maintains intellectual property related to televisions, computer products, tablets, 

digital cameras, and mobile phones.  
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20. As a mobile technology developer and industry leader, and due to its historical 

and continuous investment in research and development, Maxell owns a portfolio of patents 

related to such technologies and actively enforces its patents through licensing and/or litigation.  

21. After years of good-faith licensing negotiations, Maxell was forced to bring this 

action against Respondents to curtail their knowing and ongoing infringement of Maxell’s 

patents. 

B. Respondents 

22. Upon information and belief, Respondent Lenovo Group Ltd. is a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of China, with its principal place of business located at 

No. 6 Chuang Ye Road, Haidian District, Shangdi Information Industry Base, Beijing, 100085, 

China.  

23. Upon information and belief, Lenovo Group Ltd. is the parent company of a 

multinational conglomerate that operates under the name “Lenovo” and refers to itself and its 

subsidiaries as the “Group.” Lenovo purports to be a US$60 billion Fortune Global 500 company 

serving customers in 180 markets around the world. 

24. Upon information and belief, Respondent Lenovo (United States) Inc. is a 

corporation organized and existing under the laws of the state of Delaware, with its principal 

place of business located at 1009 Think Place, Morrisville, North Carolina 27650. Upon 

information and belief, Lenovo (United States) Inc. is, indirectly, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Lenovo Group Ltd. and is part of the Lenovo Group. 

25. Upon information and belief, Respondent Motorola Mobility LLC is a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of the state of Delaware, with its principal place of 

business located at 600 N. U.S. Highway 45, Libertyville, IL 60048. On information and belief, 
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Motorola Mobility is a subsidiary of or otherwise controlled by Lenovo Group. Upon 

information and belief, Motorola Mobility LLC is, indirectly, a wholly-owned subsidiary of 

Lenovo Group Ltd. and is part of the Lenovo Group. 

26. Upon information and belief, Respondents are part of the same corporate structure 

and distribution chain (together with other Lenovo subsidiaries, affiliates, and intermediaries) 

with respect to the design, manufacture, use, importation in the United States, offering to sell in 

the United States, and/or sale in the United States of Motorola-branded Accused Products. 

27. On information and belief, Respondents Lenovo (United States) and Motorola 

Mobility, acting at the direction of Respondent Lenovo Group Ltd., each import into the United 

States and/or sell within the United States the Accused Products. 

28. On information and belief, Respondent Lenovo Group Ltd. designs, manufactures 

(or has manufactured on its behalf), and distributes the Accused Products. Respondent Lenovo 

(United States) Inc. sells and offers to sell the Accused Products in the United States, including 

on its website (https://www.lenovo.com/us/en/phones/). Further, Respondent Motorola Mobility 

LLC sells and offers to sell the Accused Products in the United States, including on its website 

(https://www.motorola.com/us/smartphones).  

29. For example, Respondents each sell for importation into the United States, import 

into the United States, and/or sell within the United States after importation one or more mobile 

electronic devices, such as the Moto E (2020), Razr 2nd generation, Motorola Edge (2021), 

Motorola Edge (2020), Motorola Edge 5G UW, Motorola Edge+, Moto G Stylus (2021), 

Motorola One 5G Ace, Motorola One 5G UW, Motorola One 5G UW Ace, Motorola One 5G, 

Moto G Stylus (2020), Moto G100, Moto G Pure, Moto G Power (2021), Moto G Stylus 5G, 
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Moto G Fast, Moto G Play, Moto G Power (2020), and Moto G Power (2022). Maxell reserves 

the right to accuse additional products of Respondents as discovery proceeds. 

III. THE TECHNOLOGY AND PRODUCTS AT ISSUE 

30. Pursuant to 19 C.F.R. § 210.12(a)(12), the category of products accused of 

infringing the Asserted Patents are certain mobile electronic devices, i.e., smartphones.  

31. Respondents each infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents by selling 

for importation into the United States, importing into the United States, and/or selling within the 

United States after importation certain Accused Products. Exemplary Accused Products and 

infringing activities of Respondents are provided in Section V, infra. 

IV. THE ASSERTED PATENTS 

32. The Asserted Patents relate to various structures and features included in certain 

mobile electronic devices. This section provides high-level descriptions of each of the Asserted 

Patents, along with an identification of their ownership and foreign counterparts.  

33. All non-technical descriptions of the patents herein are presented to give a general 

background of those inventions. Such statements are not intended to be used, nor should they be 

used, for purposes of patent claim interpretation. Maxell presents these statements subject to, and 

without waiver of, its right to argue that claim terms should be construed in a particular way, as 

contemplated by claim interpretation jurisprudence and the relevant evidence. 

A. The ’821 Patent 

1. Identification and Ownership of the ’821 Patent  

34. Maxell owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ’821 

Patent. Ex. 7 (USPTO Assignment Record for the ’821 Patent). 
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35. A certified copy of the ’821 Patent is attached as Exhibit 1. Certified copies of the 

assignment records for the ’821 Patent are attached as Exhibit 7. A certified copy of the 

prosecution history of the ’821 Patent is included as Appendix A. Copies of each patent and 

applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history of the ’821 

Patent are included as Appendix G. 

36. The ’821 Patent is titled “Imaging Apparatus and Method for Controlling White 

Balance”; was filed on December 18, 2002; and names Haruhiko Miyao and Takahiro Nakano 

(both of Japan) as inventors. ’821 Patent at (54), (22), (75). The ’821 Patent claims priority to 

Japanese Application No. 2002-051841, which was filed on February 27, 2002. Id. at (30). 

37. The ’821 Patent issued on April 3, 2007, and will expire on December 23, 2024. 

2. Non-Technical Description of the ’821 Patent 

38. The ’821 Patent is directed to an imaging apparatus, such as a mobile electronic 

device or smartphone, that has the ability to capture pictures with the correct color effect.  

39. Specifically, in order for an imaging device to capture and generate a picture of 

high quality with proper color, the device needs to balance the different portions of the image. 

For example, if a camera is photographing a subject that is wearing a white shirt and has a 

colorful background, the camera will need to process the image signals in such a way that the 

white portion of the image is balanced with the colorful portion. This processing is referred to as 

“white balancing” of an image, or simply “white balance correction.” 

40. Prior to the ’821 Patent, conventional imaging techniques performed white 

balance correction by constructing a feedback loop. In this conventional feedback loop, signals 

corresponding to the white portion and colored portions are distinguished to detect a white 
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balance deviation. This detected deviation is then used to adjust the signals corresponding to the 

colored portions.  

41. There were several problems with these conventional techniques, however. As 

one example, conventional techniques did not create pictures of high quality under all conditions. 

For instance, detected deviation were not accurate when the colored portions of the image 

included a large part of the picture. Further, conventional techniques could not account for 

additional variations during photography, including brightness of the object being photographed, 

distance of the object from the camera, and zoom value. 

42. The ’821 Patent solved these problems. It teaches a device that implements white 

balance correction by taking into account the distance of the object being photographed, a zoom 

value, and brightness of the object being photographed.  

43. For example, the ’821 Patent discloses an imaging apparatus that includes an 

object distance detecting means, a zoom detecting means, and a brightness detecting means such 

that the apparatus corrects the white balance of the image signals based on the detected 

brightness, zoom, and distance values. Incorporating the ’821 Patent’s white balance correction 

technique ensures that the device generates high-quality pictures, even under varying conditions 

and control parameters. 

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’821 Patent 

44. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’821 

Patent: 

Jurisdiction 
Application / 

Publication  No. 
Status Patent No. 

Japan JP 2002-051841 Issued JP 4042432 
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Jurisdiction 
Application / 

Publication  No. 
Status Patent No. 

Japan JP 2007-124081 Issued JP 4458114 

Japan JP 2009-090639 Issued JP 4811494 

 
45. To the best of Maxell’s knowledge, there are no other foreign counterparts to the 

’821 Patent. 

B. The ’487 Patent 

1. Identification and Ownership of the ’487 Patent  

46. Maxell owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ’487 

Patent. Ex. 8 (USPTO Assignment Record for ’487 Patent). 

47. A certified copy of the ’487 Patent is attached as Exhibit 2. Certified copies of the 

assignment records for the ’487 Patent are attached as Exhibit 8. A certified copy of the 

prosecution history of the ’487 Patent is included as Appendix B. Copies of each patent and 

applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history of the ’487 

Patent are included as Appendix H. 

48. The ’487 Patent is titled “Wireless LAN System and Method for Roaming in a 

Multiple Base Station”; was filed on February 10, 2003; and names Jun Saito of Japan as the sole 

inventor. ’487 Patent at (54), (22), (75). The ’487 Patent claims priority to Japanese Application 

No. 2002-034515, which was filed on February 12, 2002. Id. at (30). 

49. The ’487 Patent issued on January 29, 2008, and will expire on October 5, 2025. 
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2. Non-Technical Description of the ’487 Patent 

50. The ’487 Patent is directed to a method of controlling communication between a 

wireless terminal (such as a smartphone or other cellular device) and a plurality of base stations 

in a cellular network.  

51. For example, the ’487 Patent describes a wireless terminal concurrently connected 

to two base stations in the cellular network while the two base stations are connected via a wired 

network.  

52. Further, the ’487 Patent describes the wireless terminal performing data 

communication with one of the base stations while the wireless terminal is concurrently 

connected to at least two base stations and while the two base stations are connected to each 

other via a wired network.  

53. This concurrent connection allows the wireless terminal to support dual-

connectivity such that the wireless terminal can connect to an LTE base station and a 5G base 

stations and/or to two LTE base stations. 

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’487 Patent 

54. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’487 

Patent: 

Jurisdiction 
Application / 

Publication  No. 
Status Patent No. 

Japan 2003235069A Issued 3904462B2 

 
55. To the best of Maxell’s knowledge, there are no other foreign counterparts to the 

’487 Patent. 
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C. The ’394 Patent 

1. Identification and Ownership of the ’394 Patent  

56. Maxell owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ’394 

Patent. Ex. 9 (USPTO Assignment Record for the ’394 Patent). 

57. A certified copy of the ’394 Patent is attached as Exhibit 3. Certified copies of the 

assignment records for the ’394 Patent are attached as Exhibit 9. A certified copy of the 

prosecution history of the ’394 Patent is included as Appendix C. Copies of each patent and 

applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history of the ’394 

Patent are included as Appendix I. 

58. The ’394 Patent is titled “Multimedia Player Displaying Operation Panel 

Depending on Contents”; was filed on August 23, 2006; and names Yoshihiro Machida, 

Nobuhiro Tsutsumi, and Kouji Kamogawa (all of Japan) as inventors. ’394 Patent at (54), (22), 

(75). The ’394 Patent claims priority to Japanese Application No. 2005-248576, which was filed 

on August 30, 2005. Id. at (30). 

59. The ’394 Patent issued on May 1, 2012, and will expire on August 4, 2030. 

2. Non-Technical Description of the ’394 Patent 

60. With the rise of digital media, multimedia players saw a sharp expansion in their 

capabilities. Beyond simply being able to pause, rewind, and fast forward digital content, 

conventional apparatuses also provided a host of other features for the selection and control of 

digital content. 

61. However, with these ever-expanding features also came ever-expanding control 

panels, typically in the form of graphical user interfaces (GUIs). New features meant the 

introduction of new keys or buttons to control those features, which in turn lead to increasingly 

PUBLIC VERSION



 
 

- 14 - 
 
 

cluttered GUIs. These expanding GUIs often required larger screens or the partial or complete 

overlay of whatever digital content happened to be playing at the time. 

62. Recognizing these problems, the inventors of the ’394 Patent set out to design a 

multimedia player that would show users only the buttons of particular interest at any given time. 

63. In one example of the solutions described in the ’394 Patent, a multimedia device 

(such as a smartphone or the like) includes the capability to display separate content control 

interfaces, which the patent refers to as “content operation panels.” For example, the patent 

teaches the use of a “linear content operation panel” to control the playback of digital content 

with features such as pause, rewind, and fast forward, whereas a separate “interactive content 

operation panel” included other features involving the selection and sharing of digital content. 

64. In one example embodiment, the ’394 Patent teaches that each of these operation 

panels include separate buttons, and that the two panels are not displayed at the same time. The 

teachings of the ’394 Patent thereby reduce the overall size of these operation panels, thereby 

allowing for digital content to continue being displayed while a user selects a desired operation. 

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’394 Patent 

65. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’394 

Patent: 

Jurisdiction 
Application / 

Publication  No. 
Status Patent No. 

Japan 2005248576A Issued 4640046B2 

 
66. To the best of Maxell’s knowledge, there are no other foreign counterparts to the 

’394 Patent. 
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D. The ’086 Patent 

1. Identification and Ownership of the ’086 Patent  

67. Maxell owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ’086 

Patent. Ex. 10 (USPTO Assignment Record for the ’086 Patent). 

68. A certified copy of the ’086 Patent is attached as Exhibit 4. Certified copies of the 

assignment records for the ’086 Patent are attached as Exhibit 10. A certified copy of the 

prosecution history of the ’086 Patent is included as Appendix D. Copies of each patent and 

applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history of the ’086 

Patent are included as Appendix J. 

69. The ’086 Patent is titled “Information Processing Apparatus”; was filed on 

January 14, 2014; and names Masaaki Yamada of Japan as the sole inventor. ’086 Patent at (54), 

(22), (72). The ’086 Patent is a continuation of U.S. Patent Application No. 13/366,983, filed on 

February 6, 2012 (now U.S. Patent No. 8,654,095) and claims priority to Japanese Application 

No. 2011-025576, which was filed on February 9, 2011. Id. at (63), (30). 

70. The ’086 Patent issued on March 17, 2015, and will expire on February 6, 2032. 

2. Non-Technical Description of the ’086 Patent 

71. The ’086 Patent discloses techniques for conveniently unlocking information 

processing devices, such as smartphones. 

72. For example, prior to the ’086 Patent, one way of unlocking devices was by 

inputting a passcode that was preset by a user. This process would be time consuming, however, 

and it would require the user to memorize the passcode. Further, users with multiple devices 

would need to memorize different passcodes or have the same passcode on all devices, which 
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would increase the risk of the security breach of all of the devices if another user learned of the 

sole passcode. 

73. The ’086 Patent teaches a device that allows users to conveniently execute an 

unlock operation on their devices by using the tip or pad of their fingers, as shown below in the 

example embodiment of Figure 11A of the ’086 Patent: 

 

74. The ’086 Patent also allows users to associate specific operations using the 

fingertip and finger pad, and the device will recognize that the user is entering an input via the 

fingertip or finger pad and executes a corresponding operation. This concept is shown by the 

example embodiment of Figure 12B of the ’086 Patent: 
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3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’086 Patent 

75. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’086 

Patent: 

Jurisdiction 
Application / 

Publication  No. 
Status Patent No. 

China 201210012756A Issued 102707826B 

Japan 2012164241A Issued 5651494B2 

 
76. To the best of Maxell’s knowledge, there are no other foreign counterparts to the 

’086 Patent. 

E. The ’590 Patent 

1. Identification and Ownership of the ’590 Patent  

77. Maxell owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ’590 

Patent. Ex. 11 (USPTO Assignment Record for the ’590 Patent). 

78. A certified copy of the ’590 Patent is attached as Exhibit 5. Certified copies of the 

assignment records for the ’590 Patent are attached as Exhibit 11. A certified copy of the 

prosecution history of the ’590 Patent is included as Appendix E. Copies of each patent and 
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applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history of the ’590 

Patent are included as Appendix K. 

79. The ’590 Patent is titled “Display Apparatus and Video Processing Apparatus”; 

was filed on July 13, 2016; and names Toshiyuki Kurita and Hitoaki Owashi (both of Japan) as 

inventors. ’590 Patent at (54), (22), (72). The ’590 Patent is a continuation of U.S. Patent 

Application No. 12/260,410, filed on October 29, 2008 (now U.S. Patent No. 9,420,212) and 

claims priority to Japanese Application No. 2007-306750, which was filed on November 28, 

2007. Id. at (63), (30). 

80. The ’590 Patent was also subject to reexamination. At the conclusion of this 

reexamination, on November 15, 2021, Ex parte Reexamination Certificate 11946 issued, which 

confirmed the patentability of claims 1, 5, 9, and 10 as amended; confirmed the patentability of 

claims 2-4 and 6-8 based on amended independent claims; and added (and determined to be 

patentable) new claims 11 – 25. 

81. The ’590 Patent issued on November 13, 2018, and will expire on December 2, 

2028. 

2. Non-Technical Description of the ’590 Patent 

82. The ’590 Patent is directed to a technique for establishing multiple connections 

between a plurality of device wirelessly via a radio in order to transmit video information.  

83. For example, prior to the ’590 Patent, conventional techniques connected video 

processing devices with each other by establishing analog connections for video and audio 

signals. But with the widespread use of digital videos and the ability of devices to perform 

multiple tasks at the same time, there arose a need to implement additional techniques of 
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transmitting video information while also ensuring that the device could continue to be used for 

additional functions during video transfer. 

84. Thus, the ’590 Patent discloses a technique wherein a video processing device can 

include multiple radio communication circuits such that these circuits could be controlled to 

transfer video to another device via one of the circuits, while another circuit could be used to 

allow the video processing device to connect to the Internet or home network. This solution 

allows the video processing device to transfer video information over a digital connection while 

also ensuing that it could continue to be used to perform additional functions such as accessing a 

website over the Internet. 

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’590 Patent 

85. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’590 

Patent: 

Jurisdiction 
Application / 

Publication  No. 
Status Patent No. 

Japan JP 2007-306750 Issued JP 5033598 

China CN 201410395041 Issued CN 104540008 

China CN 201510969210 Issued CN 105407104 

China CN 200810175595 Issued CN 101447902 

 
86. To the best of Maxell’s knowledge, there are no other foreign counterparts to the 

’590 Patent. 

PUBLIC VERSION



 
 

- 20 - 
 
 

F. The ’284 Patent 

1. Identification and Ownership of the ’284 Patent  

87. Maxell owns by assignment the entire right, title, and interest in and to the ’284 

Patent. Ex. 12 (USPTO Assignment Record for the ’284 Patent). 

88. A certified copy of the ’284 Patent is attached as Exhibit 6. Certified copies of the 

assignment records for the ’284 Patent are attached as Exhibit 12. A certified copy of the 

prosecution history of the ’284 Patent is included as Appendix F. Copies of each patent and 

applicable pages of each technical reference mentioned in the prosecution history of the ’284 

Patent are included as Appendix L. 

89. The ’284 Patent is titled “Display Apparatus and Video Processing Apparatus”; 

was filed on February 7, 2018; and names Toshiyuki Kurita and Hitoaki Owashi (both of Japan) 

as inventors. ’284 Patent at (54), (22), (72). The ’284 Patent is a continuation of the ’590 patent 

and also claims priority to Japanese Application No. 2007-306750, which was filed on 

November 28, 2007. Id. at (63), (30). 

90. The ’284 Patent issued on March 26, 2019, and will expire on October 29, 2028. 

2. Non-Technical Description of the ’284 Patent 

91. The same teachings of the ’590 Patent are also contained in the ’284 Patent, and 

the corresponding discussion at Section IV.E.2, supra, is hereby incorporated herein. 

3. Foreign Counterparts to the ’284 Patent 

92. The following foreign patents and patent applications correspond to the ’284 

Patent: 
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Jurisdiction 
Application / 

Publication  No. 
Status Patent No. 

Japan JP 2007-306750 Issued JP 5033598 

China CN 201410395041 Issued CN 104540008 

China CN 201510969210 Issued CN 105407104 

China CN 200810175595 Issued CN 101447902 

 
93. To the best of Maxell’s knowledge, there are no other foreign counterparts to the 

’284 Patent. 

G. Licensees 

94. Exhibit 13 is a list of licensees to one or more of the Asserted Patents that are 

known to Maxell. 

V. RESPONDENTS’ UNLAWFUL AND UNFAIR ACTS 

A. Respondents’ Prior Dealings with Maxell and Awareness of the Asserted Patents 

95.  
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109. Specifically, Maxell sent a letter to Lenovo on May 17, 2018 identifying fifty 

patents from Maxell’s patent portfolio that Maxell believed were infringed by Lenovo’s sale of 

Motorola-branded smartphones. See Exhibit 61. In the letter, Maxell explained that it “is focused 

on addressing these issues without the need for costly and protracted litigation, and it would 

welcome the opportunity to have constructive discussions with Motorola to determine whether a 

mutually acceptable patent license agreement can be reached.” See Exhibit 61 at 5. 

110. Between May 17, 2018 and July 9, 2018, Maxell’s representative—Jamie 

Beaber— and Lenovo’s Director of Licensing—Kathryn Tsirigotis—exchanged several 

communications including invitations from Mr. Beaber to schedule a time for a call or host an in-

person meeting in Ms. Tsirigoti’s then-location of North Carolina. Ms. Tsirigotis never 

responded to Mr. Beaber’s invitations and no further communications were received from 

Lenovo. See Exhibit 62. 

111. Having not heard back from any Lenovo representatives, Maxell sent another 

letter on June 3, 2021, following up with respect to the prior invitations to host a meeting and 

continue to explain that Maxell believes that Lenovo’s sale of Motorola-branded smartphones 

infringe Maxell’s patents. See Exhibit 63. In this correspondence, Maxell specifically called to 

attention additional issued and allowed patents (119 in total) from Maxell’s portfolio and 
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identified claims of those patents along with specific Motorola smartphone models that were 

infringing the claims. Once again, Lenovo did not respond.   

112. Mr. Beaber finally was able to reach Mr. Fergal Clarke—a different Lenovo 

representative—through further exchanges of email and the two of them held a telephone 

conference on August 17, 2021. Despite Maxell’s efforts, this call took place approximately 

three years after the initial communications with Lenovo and after numerous invitations for a call 

or meeting. 

113. During the call, Mr. Clarke confirmed that he was aware of the initial 

correspondence with Ms. Tsirigotis but noted that she had departed the company.  

 

 

 

  

114. Another telephone conference on September 14, 2021, also did not resolve the 

issue. 

115. On yet another follow-up call, on October 5, 2021, Mr. Clarke was joined by 

Lenovo’s Director, IP Counsel, Mr. Scott Reid. A  
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116.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

117.  

 

 The fact that Lenovo’s Motorola-branded smartphones 

infringe Maxell patents also did not seem to concern Lenovo’s representatives, despite the point 

being emphasized in several communications and on the October 5, 2021 telephone call.  

118.  
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119. Nevertheless, Maxell had hoped that the parties could reach a mutually beneficial 

solution— —but Lenovo 

instead implemented dilatory tactics for over three and a half years and elected not to enter into 

an agreement with Maxell and/or license Maxell’s patents for smartphones. Accordingly, in 

2021, Maxell brought litigation against Lenovo asserting infringement of eight other patents 

from the same portfolio of which the currently asserted patents are a part. Case No. 6:21-cv-

01169 (W.D.Tex.). Yet, Lenovo has still elected not to license Maxell’s patents and that 

litigation is pending. The result is that Lenovo has continued, and continues today to make, use, 

sell and offer for sale Maxell’s patented technology without a license. 

B. Instances of Infringement 

120. Respondents infringe (literally or under the doctrine of equivalents) at least the 

following claims of the Asserted Patents under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a) and/or (b): 

Asserted Patents Asserted Claims2 

’821 Patent 1, 6, 7 

’487 Patent 1, 3, 4 

’394 Patent 2, 4, 5, 7, 8 

’086 Patent 1, 2, 4, 6, 9-13, 15 

                                                 
2 Bolded numbers denote independent claims. 
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Asserted Patents Asserted Claims2 

’590 Patent 1, 5, 9, 11-14, 16-22, 23-25 

’284 Patent 1, 3, 4, 7, 9, 10, 18-20 

 
121. On information and belief, Respondents Lenovo (United States) and Motorola 

Mobility, acting at the direction of Respondent Lenovo Group Ltd., each import, sell for 

importation into the United States, and/or sell within the United States after importation certain 

Accused Products, such as the Moto E (2020), Razr 2nd generation, Motorola Edge (2021), 

Motorola Edge (2020), Motorola Edge 5G UW, Motorola Edge+, Moto G Stylus (2021), 

Motorola One 5G Ace, Motorola One 5G UW, Motorola One 5G UW Ace, Motorola One 5G, 

Moto G Stylus (2020), Moto G100, Moto G Pure, Moto G Power (2021), Moto G Stylus 5G, 

Moto G Fast, Moto G Play, Moto G Power (2020), and Moto G Power (2022). 

1. ’821 Patent 

122. Respondents directly infringe (literally or under the doctrine of equivalents) at 

least claims 1, 6, and 7 of the ’821 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a). The Accused Products each 

satisfy all limitations of these claims at the time of importation into the United States. 

123. In addition, Respondents indirectly infringe claim 6 of the ’821 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). Specifically, Respondents knowingly and intentionally induce infringement of 

claim 6 of the ’821 Patent. Respondents have had knowledge of the ’821 Patent and their 

infringement of the ’821 Patent since at least May 17, 2018, based on correspondence directed to 

Courtney VanLonKhuyzen Welton which set forth Maxell’s belief that Respondents make, use, 

sell, offer to sell, or import products that infringe certain of Maxell’s patents, and specifically 

identified the ’821 Patent as well as exemplary claims and exemplary accused products for that 

patent. See Exhibit 61. Despite this knowledge of the ’821 Patent, Respondents have actively 
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encouraged, promoted instructed, supported, and/or aided and abetted others (including without 

limitation customers, end users, partners, affiliates, subsidiaries, importers, distributors, and/or 

sellers) to directly infringe claim 6 of the ’821 Patent through at least user guides, online 

instruction materials, and websites, such as is shown in the appended claim charts. Respondents 

continue to import, sell for importation, and/or sell in the United States the Accused Products, 

despite their knowledge of the ’821 Patent, thereby specifically intending for and inducing third 

parties to infringe the ’821 Patent through the normal and customary use of the Accused 

Products. 

124. A claim chart comparing claims 1, 6, and 7 of the ’821 Patent to the Accused 

Products is attached as Exhibit 15.  

125. The identification of accused elements presented in this claim chart are 

preliminary and exemplary, and Maxell reserves the right to modify its infringement theories as a 

result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any 

investigation instituted from this Complaint. 

2. ’487 Patent 

126. Respondents directly infringe (literally or under the doctrine of equivalents) at 

least claims 1, 3, and 4 of the ’487 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a). The Accused Products each 

satisfy all limitations of these claims at the time of importation into the United States. 

127. In addition, Respondents indirectly infringe claims 1, 3, and 4 of the ’487 Patent 

under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Specifically, Respondents knowingly and intentionally induce 

infringement of claims 1, 3, and 4 of the ’487 Patent. Respondents have had knowledge of the 

’487 Patent and their infringement of the ’487 Patent since at least May 17, 2018, based on 

correspondence directed to Courtney VanLonKhuyzen Welton which set forth Maxell’s belief 

PUBLIC VERSION



 
 

- 31 - 
 
 

that Respondents make, use, sell, offer to sell, or import products that infringe certain of 

Maxell’s patents, and specifically identified the ’487 Patent as well as exemplary claims and 

exemplary accused products for that patent. See Exhibit 61. Despite this knowledge of the ’487 

Patent, Respondents have actively encouraged, promoted instructed, supported, and/or aided and 

abetted others (including without limitation customers, end users, partners, affiliates, 

subsidiaries, importers, distributors, and/or sellers) to directly infringe claims 1, 3, and 4 of the 

’487 Patent through at least user guides, online instruction materials, and websites, such as is 

shown in the appended claim charts. Respondents continue to import, sell for importation, and/or 

sell in the United States the Accused Products, despite their knowledge of the ’487 Patent, 

thereby specifically intending for and inducing third parties to infringe the ’487 Patent through 

the normal and customary use of the Accused Products. 

128. A claim chart comparing claims 1, 3, and 4 of the ’487 Patent to the Accused 

Products is attached as Exhibit 16.  

129. The identification of accused elements presented in this claim chart are 

preliminary and exemplary, and Maxell reserves the right to modify its infringement theories as a 

result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any 

investigation instituted from this Complaint. 

3. ’394 Patent 

130. Respondents directly infringe (literally or under the doctrine of equivalents) at 

least claims 2, 4, 5, 7, and 8 of the ’394 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a). The Accused Products 

each satisfy all limitations of these claims at the time of importation into the United States. 

131. A claim chart comparing claims 2, 4, 5, 7, and 8 of the ’394 Patent to the Accused 

Products is attached as Exhibit 17.  
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132. The identification of accused elements presented in this claim chart are 

preliminary and exemplary, and Maxell reserves the right to modify its infringement theories as a 

result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any 

investigation instituted from this Complaint. 

4. ’086 Patent 

133. Respondents directly infringe (literally or under the doctrine of equivalents) at 

least claims 1, 2, 4, 6, 9-13, and 15 of the ’086 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a). The Accused 

Products each satisfy all limitations of these claims at the time of importation into the United 

States. 

134. A claim chart comparing claims 1, 2, 4, 6, 9-13, and 15 of the ’086 Patent to the 

Accused Products is attached as Exhibit 18.  

135. The identification of accused elements presented in this claim chart are 

preliminary and exemplary, and Maxell reserves the right to modify its infringement theories as a 

result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any 

investigation instituted from this Complaint. 

5. ’590 Patent 

136. Respondents directly infringe (literally or under the doctrine of equivalents) at 

least claims 1, 5, 9, 11-14, and 16-25 of the ’590 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a). The Accused 

Products each satisfy all limitations of these claims at the time of importation into the United 

States. 

137. In addition, Respondents indirectly infringe claim 9 of the ’590 Patent under 35 

U.S.C. § 271(b). Specifically, Respondents knowingly and intentionally induce infringement of 

claim 9 of the ’590 Patent. Respondents have had knowledge of the ’590 Patent and their 
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infringement of the ’590 Patent since at least June 3, 2021, based on correspondence directed to 

Lenovo’s Directors of Intellectual Property—Fergal Clarke and Robert Renke—which set forth 

Maxell’s belief that Respondents make, use, sell, offer to sell, or import products that infringe 

certain of Maxell’s patents, and specifically identified the ’590 Patent as well as exemplary 

claims and exemplary accused products for that patent. See Exhibit 63. Despite this knowledge 

of the ’590 Patent, Respondents have actively encouraged, promoted instructed, supported, 

and/or aided and abetted others (including without limitation customers, end users, partners, 

affiliates, subsidiaries, importers, distributors, and/or sellers) to directly infringe claim 9 of the 

’590 Patent through at least user guides, online instruction materials, and websites, such as is 

shown in the appended claim charts. Respondents continue to import, sell for importation, and/or 

sell in the United States the Accused Products, despite their knowledge of the ’590 Patent, 

thereby specifically intending for and inducing third parties to infringe the ’590 Patent through 

the normal and customary use of the Accused Products. 

138. A claim chart comparing claims 1, 5, 9, 11-14, and 16-25 of the ’590 Patent to the 

Accused Products is attached as Exhibit 19. 

139. The identification of accused elements presented in this claim chart are 

preliminary and exemplary, and Maxell reserves the right to modify its infringement theories as a 

result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any 

investigation instituted from this Complaint. 

6. ’284 Patent 

140. Respondents directly infringe (literally or under the doctrine of equivalents) at 

least claims 1, 3, 4, 7, 9, 10, and 18-20 of the ’284 Patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(a). The Accused 
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Products each satisfy all limitations of these claims at the time of importation into the United 

States. 

141. In addition, Respondents indirectly infringe claims 18-20 of the ’284 Patent under 

35 U.S.C. § 271(b). Specifically, Respondents knowingly and intentionally induce infringement 

of claims 18-20 of the ’284 Patent. Respondents have had knowledge of the ’284 Patent and their 

infringement of the ’284 Patent since at least June 3, 2021, based on correspondence directed to 

Lenovo’s Directors of Intellectual Property—Fergal Clarke and Robert Renke—which set forth 

Maxell’s belief that Respondents make, use, sell, offer to sell, or import products that infringe 

certain of Maxell’s patents, and specifically identified the ’284 Patent as well as exemplary 

claims and exemplary accused products for that patent. See Exhibit 63. Despite this knowledge 

of the ’284 Patent, Respondents have actively encouraged, promoted instructed, supported, 

and/or aided and abetted others (including without limitation customers, end users, partners, 

affiliates, subsidiaries, importers, distributors, and/or sellers) to directly infringe claims 18-20 of 

the ’284 Patent through at least user guides, online instruction materials, and websites, such as is 

shown in the appended claim charts. Respondents continue to import, sell for importation, and/or 

sell in the United States the Accused Products, despite their knowledge of the ’284 Patent, 

thereby specifically intending for and inducing third parties to infringe the ’284 Patent through 

the normal and customary use of the Accused Products. 

142. A claim chart comparing claims 1, 3, 4, 7, 9, 10, and 18-20 of the ’284 Patent to 

the Accused Products is attached as Exhibit 20. 

143. The identification of accused elements presented in this claim chart are 

preliminary and exemplary, and Maxell reserves the right to modify its infringement theories as a 

PUBLIC VERSION



 
 

- 35 - 
 
 

result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any 

investigation instituted from this Complaint. 

VI. SPECIFIC INSTANCES OF IMPORTATION 

144. On information and belief, the Accused Products are each manufactured outside 

of the United States and sold for importation into the United States, imported into the United 

States, and/or sold within the United States after importation. 

145. For example, the product packaging for the accused Moto E (2020) device 

confirms that this product was made in China and imported into the United States: 

 

Exhibit 21 

146. In addition, the product packaging for the accused Moto G Power (2021) device 

confirms that this product was made in China and imported into the United States: 
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Exhibit 22 

147. The product packaging for the accused Moto G Power (2022) device confirms 

that this product was made in China and imported into the United States: 

 

Exhibit 23 

148. Moreover, the product packaging for the accused Motorola Edge (2020) device 

confirms that this product was made in China and imported into the United States: 
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Exhibit 24 

149. The product packaging for the accused Motorola Edge+ device confirms that this 

product was made in China and imported into the United States: 

 

Exhibit 25 
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150. The product packaging for the accused Motorola One 5G device confirms that this 

product was made in China and imported into the United States: 

 

Exhibit 26 

151. Each of the above sample products was shipped from their manufacturing location 

in China to the United States (Washington, DC, and New York, NY). See Ex. 41; Ex. 42. These 

purchases occurred after the issue dates of each of the Asserted Patents. 

152. On information and belief, the remaining Accused Products are also made 

overseas (e.g., in China) and are imported into the United States.  

153. For example, each of the Accused Products is offered for sale on Motorola’s 

website (https://www.motorola.com/us/smartphones), where consumers in the United States can 

have these Chinese-manufactured phones shipped directly to them using the various “Buy Now” 

buttons: 
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VII. CLASSIFICATION OF THE ACCUSED PRODUCTS UNDER THE 
HARMONIZED TARIFF SCHEDULE 

154. The Accused Products are classified under at least the following subheadings of 

the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of the United States: 8517.12.00 (mobile phones) and 

8471.30.01, 8471.41.01, or 8471.49.00 (handheld computers); 8473.30, 8471.60.90 (Other 

input/output units, whether or not containing storage units combined in the same house); and 

8471.41.01 (Other automatic data processing machines: Comprising in the same housing at least 

a central processing unit and an input and output unit, whether or not combined).  

155. These classifications are exemplary in nature and are not intended to restrict the 

scope of any exclusion order or other remedy ordered by the Commission. 
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VIII. RELATED LITIGATION 

156. The ’821 Patent was previously the subject of a pending declaratory judgment 

action: Motorola Mobility LLC v. Maxell, Ltd., Case 1:22-cv-00256 in the Northern District of 

Illinois. However, by way of amendment on March 4, 2022, Motorola withdrew the ’821 Patent 

from that case. 

157. The ’821 Patent was also part of the following litigation: Maxell, Ltd. v. Lenovo 

Group Ltd., No. 6:21-cv-01169, currently pending in the Western District of Texas. However, by 

way of amendment on February 4, 2022, Maxell withdrew the ’821 Patent from that case. 

158. The ’821 Patent also has been the subject of the following other matters, each of 

which is now resolved:  

 Certain Mobile Electronic Devices and Laptop Computers, Inv. No. 337-TA-1215 

(U.S.I.T.C.); 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. Apple Inc., No. 6:20-cv-00646 (W.D. Tex.); 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. Olympus Corp., No. 1:18-cv-00310 (D. Del.); 

 Olympus Corp. v. Maxell, Ltd., No 1:18-cv-00216 (D. Del.); and 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. BlackBerry Corp., No. 1:17-cv-01446 (D. Del.). 

159. The ’487 Patent has been the subject of the following other matters, each of which 

is now resolved: 

 Huawei Technologies Co., Ltd. v. Maxell, Ltd., IPR2019-00462 (P.T.A.B.); 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. Huawei Device USA, Inc., No. 5:18-cv-00033 (E.D. Tex.); and 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. ZTE Corp., No. 5:18-cv-00034 (E.D. Tex.). 

160. The ’394 Patent has been the subject of the following other matters, each of which 

is now resolved: 
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 BlackBerry Corp. v. Maxell, Ltd., IPR2019-00089 (P.T.A.B.); and 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. BlackBerry Corp., No. 1:17-cv-01446 (D. Del.). 

161. The ’086 Patent has been the subject of the following other matters, each of which 

is now resolved: 

 Apple Inc. v. Maxell, Ltd., IPR2021-00362 (P.T.A.B.); 

 Certain Mobile Electronic Devices and Laptop Computers, Inv. No. 337-TA-1215 

(U.S.I.T.C.); 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. Apple Inc., No. 6:20-cv-00646 (W.D. Tex.); 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. ASUSTek Computer Inc., No. 5:18-cv-00136 (E.D. Tex.); 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. Huawei Device USA, Inc., 5:18-cv-00033 (E.D. Tex.); and 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. ZTE Corp., No. 5:18-cv-00034 (E.D. Tex.). 

162. The ’590 Patent has been the subject of the following other matters, each of which 

is now resolved: 

 Apple, Inc. v. Maxell, Ltd., IPR2021-00400 (P.T.A.B.); 

 Certain Mobile Electronic Devices and Laptop Computers, Inv. No. 337-TA-1215 

(U.S.I.T.C.); and 

 Maxell, Ltd. v. Apple Inc., 6:20-cv-00646 (W.D. Tex.). 

163. To the best of Maxell’s knowledge, the ’284 Patent has not been the subject of 

any current or prior litigation apart from any investigation instituting from this Complaint. 

IX. DOMESTIC INDUSTRY 

164. An industry as required by Section 337(a)(2) and defined by Section 337(a)(3) 

exists in the United States as a result of the domestic activities related to products that practice 

the Asserted Patents. These activities include the current significant and substantial domestic 

PUBLIC VERSION



 
 

- 42 - 
 
 

investments of Maxell’s licensees, including without limitation Apple Inc. (“Apple”) and BLU 

Products, Inc. (“BLU”) (together, the “DI Licensees”).  

165. The DI Licensees have made significant domestic investments in plant, 

equipment, labor and capital, and made substantial domestic investments in engineering and 

research and development related to products that practice and are protected by the Asserted 

Patents (“Domestic Industry Products”).  

166. Pursuant to Commission Rule 210.12(a)(9)(iv), Maxell has attached as Exhibits 

27 and 28 copies of Maxell, Ltd.’s licensing agreements with each of the DI Licensees, or their 

parent companies, as follows:  

 Confidential Exhibit 27 is a copy of Maxell, Ltd.’s Patent License Agreement with 

Apple Inc.; and 

 Confidential Exhibit 28 is a copy of Maxell, Ltd.’s Patent License Agreement with 

BLU Products, Inc. 

167. Pursuant to these agreements, both DI Licensees are authorized to and in fact do 

practice certain claims of the Asserted Patents as outlined herein. 

A. Technical Prong 

168. Both DI Licensees practice at least one claim of each of the Asserted Patents. 

169. Exhibit 29 is a claim chart showing how certain Apple products practice certain 

claims of the ’821 Patent. 

170. Exhibit 30 is a claim chart showing how certain BLU products practice certain 

claims of the ’821 Patent.  
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171. Exhibit 31 is a claim chart showing how certain Apple products practice certain 

claims of the ’487 Patent. 

172. Exhibit 32 is a claim chart showing how certain BLU products practice certain 

claims of the ’487 Patent. 

173. Exhibit 33 is a claim chart showing how certain Apple products practice certain 

claims of the ’394 Patent. 

174. Exhibit 34 is a claim chart showing how certain BLU products practice certain 

claims of the ’394 Patent. 

175. Exhibit 35 is a claim chart showing how certain Apple products practice certain 

claims of the ’086 Patent. 

176. Exhibit 36 is a claim chart showing how certain BLU products practice certain 

claims of the ’086 Patent. 

177. Exhibit 37 is a claim chart showing how certain Apple products practice certain 

claims of the ’590 Patent. 

178. Exhibit 38 is a claim chart showing how certain BLU products practice certain 

claims of the ’590 Patent. 

179. Exhibit 39 is a claim chart showing how certain Apple products practice certain 

claims of the ’284 Patent. 

180. Exhibit 40 is a claim chart showing how certain BLU products practice certain 

claims of the ’284 Patent. 

181. The identification of elements presented in these claim charts are preliminary and 

exemplary, and Maxell reserves the right to modify its technical domestic industry theories as a 
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result of information learned during discovery and positions taken by Respondents in any 

investigation instituted from this Complaint. 

B. Economic Prong 

182.  There is a domestic industry as defined under 19 U.S.C. § 1337(a)(3)(A), (B), 

and/or (C), comprising significant investments made in the United States by the DI Licensees in 

plant and equipment, employment of labor and capital, and substantial investment in exploitation 

of the Asserted Patents. Specific, non-limiting examples of such investments are set forth below. 

1. Apple Inc. 

183. To establish a domestic industry with respect to the Asserted Patents, Maxell 

relies in part on the investments and activities in the United States by Apple relating to products 

that practice and are protected by such patents (collectively, “Apple DI Products”), as follows: 

Asserted Patent Apple Products Practicing and Protected by Patent 

7,199,821 

iPhone 13 Pro, iPhone 13 Pro Max, iPhone 13, iPhone 12, iPhone 12 
mini, iPhone SE (2nd Generation), iPhone 11, iPhone XS, iPhone 
XR, iPhone X, iPhone 8, iPad (9th generation), iPad Air (4th 
generation), iPad mini (6th generation), iPad Pro 12.9 (5th 
generation), iPad Pro 11 (3rd generation), MacBook Pro 18,3/18,4 
(14-inch 2021), MacBook Pro 18,1/18,2 (16-inch 2021), MacBook 
Pro (13-inch, M1, 2020), and MacBook Pro (13-inch, 2020, Two 
Thunderbolt 3 ports) 

7,324,487 

iPhone 13 Pro, iPhone 13 Pro Max, iPhone 13, iPhone 12, iPhone 12 
mini, iPhone SE (2nd Generation), iPhone 11, iPhone XS, iPhone 
XR, iPhone X, iPhone 8, iPad (9th generation with cellular 
functionality), iPad Air (4th generation with cellular functionality), 
iPad mini (6th generation with cellular functionality), iPad Pro 12.9 
(5th generation with cellular functionality), and iPad Pro 11 (3rd 
generation with cellular functionality).  

8,170,394 
iPhone 13 Pro, iPhone 13 Pro Max, iPhone 13, iPhone 12, iPhone 12 
mini, iPhone SE (2nd Generation), iPhone 11, iPhone XS, iPhone 
XR, iPhone X, iPhone 8, iPad (9th generation), iPad Air (4th 
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Asserted Patent Apple Products Practicing and Protected by Patent 

generation), iPad mini (6th generation), iPad Pro 12.9 (5th 
generation), and iPad Pro 11 (3rd generation). 

8,982,086 

iPhone SE (2nd Generation), iPhone 8, iPad (9th generation), iPad Air 
(4th generation), iPad mini (6th generation), MacBook Air 10,1 (M1, 
2020), MacBook Air 9,1 (Retina, 13-inch, 2020), MacBook Pro 
18,3/18,4 (14-inch 2021), MacBook Pro 18,1/18,2 (16-inch 2021), 
MacBook Pro (13-inch, M1, 2020), and MacBook Pro (13-inch, 
2020, Two Thunderbolt 3 ports 

10,129,590 iPhone 13 Pro, iPhone 13 Pro Max, iPhone 13, iPhone 12, iPhone 12 
mini, iPhone SE (2nd Generation), iPhone 11, iPhone XS, iPhone 
XR, iPhone X, iPhone 8, iPad (9th generation with cellular 
functionality), iPad Air (4th generation with cellular functionality), 
iPad mini (6th generation with cellular functionality), iPad Pro 12.9 
(5th generation with cellular functionality), and iPad Pro 11 (3rd 
generation with cellular functionality).   

10,244,284 iPhone 13 Pro, iPhone 13 Pro Max, iPhone 13, iPhone 12, iPhone 12 
mini, iPhone SE (2nd Generation), iPhone 11, iPhone XS, iPhone 
XR, iPhone X, iPhone 8, iPad (9th generation with cellular 
functionality), iPad Air (4th generation with cellular functionality), 
iPad mini (6th generation with cellular functionality), iPad Pro 12.9 
(5th generation with cellular functionality), and iPad Pro 11 (3rd 
generation with cellular functionality).   

 

184. Apple’s domestic investments and expenditures in activities relating to the 

Asserted Patents include significant investments and expenditures in plant and equipment and 

significant employment of labor and capital. Apple’s domestic investments and expenditures in 

activities relating to the Asserted Patents further include substantial investments in the 

exploitation of the technology claimed by these asserted patents. Taken together, Apple’s 

domestic investments satisfy the economic prong with respect to the Asserted Patents under 

subsections A, B, and C of Section 337(a)(3). 
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185. On information and belief, Apple’s significant investments in plant, equipment, 

labor, and capital relate to, among other things, the design, research and development, 

engineering, testing, compliance, distribution, warranty and repair, and customer service and 

support of mobile devices and laptop computers, including the Apple DI Products. Apple’s 

substantial investments in the exploitation of the technology claimed by the Asserted Patents are 

based on investments in at least design, research and development, and engineering relating to 

technology claimed by the Asserted Patents, which include the Apple DI Products. 

186. Apple is an American company organized under the laws of the State of 

California, having its principal place of business located at One Apple Park Way, Cupertino, CA 

95014. Exhibit 43.  

187. Apple’s campus in Cupertino, California, called Apple Park, opened to employees 

in April 2017. Exhibit 44. Apple Park constitutes a 175-acre campus and includes a 2.8 million 

square foot main building worth $4.17 billion. Id.; Exhibit 45.  

188. Apple also has additional locations throughout the United States, including 

Boulder, Colorado; Culver City, California; New York City, New York; Pittsburgh, 

Pennsylvania; San Diego, California; Miami, Florida; Portland, Oregon; Boston, Massachusetts; 

and Seattle, Washington. See, e.g., Certain Cellular Base Station Communication Equipment, 

Components Thereof, and Products Containing Same, No. 337-TA-1302, Verified Complaint of 

Apple Inc., at ¶ 54. Indeed, Apple is currently constructing a $1 billion campus in Austin, Texas 

and expects to start moving employees into the space this year. Exhibit 46. 

189. Apple Park supports 12,000 employees, which include engineers that conduct 

research, design, development, and testing of Apple’s products. Exhibit 45; Cellular Base Station 

Communication Equipment, No. 337-TA-1302, Verified Complaint of Apple Inc., at ¶ 54. More 
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broadly, Apple claims that it “supports more than 2.7 million jobs across the United States 

through direct employment, spending with suppliers and manufacturers, and developer jobs in 

the thriving iOS app economy.” Cellular Base Station Communication Equipment, No. 337-TA-

1302, Verified Complaint of Apple Inc., at ¶ 55; see also Exhibit 46.  

190. In April, 2021, Apple announced a commitment to “make new contributions of 

more than $430 billion and add 20,000 new jobs across the [United States] over the next five 

years.” Exhibit 46. Apple’s “actual and planned contributions to the U.S. economy include direct 

spending with American suppliers, data center investments, capital expenditures in the United 

States, and other domestic spend.” Id. 

191. Apple “is the largest taxpayer in the United States and has paid almost $45 billion 

in domestic corporate income taxes over the past five years alone.” Exhibit 46.  

192. In fiscal year 2021, Apple attained iPhone sales of roughly $191.9 billion, iPad 

sales of roughly $31.8 billion, and Mac sales of roughly $35.1 billion. Exhibit 43 at 21. Apple’s 

total net sales for that time period was roughly $365.8 billion. Net sales in the United States 

accounted for over 36% of Apple’s total net sales worldwide of all products and services in fiscal 

year 2021. Id. at 51. On information and belief, the Apple DI Products account for a significant 

portion of these iPhone, iPad, and Mac sales.  

193. Apple itself has taken the position that a domestic industry, under subparts (A), 

(B), and/or (C) of Section 337(a)(3), existed as of January 2022 by virtue of its significant U.S. 

investment in plant and equipment, significant employment of U.S. labor and capital, and 

substantial investment in U.S. exploitation based on investments related to iPhone products 

which overlap significantly with the iPhones that constitute the Apple DI Products here. Cellular 
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Base Station Communication Equipment, No. 337-TA-1302, Verified Complaint of Apple Inc., 

at ¶¶ 52-57. 

194. Apple is expected to provide additional bases and supporting information under 

this section through discovery or otherwise.  Such bases and information are expected to include, 

without limitation, data on Apple’s domestic investments in labor (including information on the 

number of domestic employees, responsibilities of employees, and salaries and other costs 

associated with such employees), facilities (including expenditures on facilities), equipment 

(including information on types and cost of equipment implemented at facilities), and R&D in 

mobile devices and laptop computers, including the Apple DI Products. Discovery from Apple is 

also expected to provide bases by which to apportion overall domestic investments to the Apple 

DI Products, such as through percentage of sales made up by such products or through records 

identifying work performed.  

2. BLU Products, Inc. 

195. To establish a domestic industry with respect to the Asserted Patents, Maxell 

relies in part on the investments and activities in the United States by BLU relating to products 

that practice and are protected by such patents, including the BLU G91 Pro, G51 Plus, G91, G71, 

G50 Mega, G90 Pro, G9 Pro, G90, G80, G50, G6, G9, J9L, J6 2020, J2, Vivo XI, Vivo XI+, 

Vivo X5, Vivo XL5, View 3, View Mega, View 2, and View 1 (collectively, “BLU DI 

Products”). BLU’s domestic investments and expenditures in activities relating to the Asserted 

Patents include significant investments and expenditures in plant and equipment and significant 

employment of labor and capital. BLU’s domestic investments and expenditures in activities 

relating to the Asserted Patents further include substantial investments in the exploitation of the 

technology claimed by these asserted patents. Taken together, BLU’s domestic investments 
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satisfy the economic prong with respect to the Asserted Patents under subsections A, B, and C of 

Section 337(a)(3). 

196. On information and belief, BLU’s significant investments in plant, equipment, 

labor, and capital relate to, among other things, the design, research and development, 

engineering, testing, compliance, distribution, warranty and repair, and customer service and 

support of mobile devices, including the BLU DI Products. BLU’s substantial investments in the 

exploitation of the technology claimed by the Asserted Patents are based on investments in 

design, research and development, and engineering relating to technology claimed by the 

Asserted Patents, which include the BLU DI Products. 

197. BLU is a company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Florida 

with a principal place of business located at 10814 NW 33rd Street, Doral Florida, 33172. 

Exhibit 47. The company was founded in 2009. Exhibit 48. According to the Florida Secretary of 

State’s business registrations, BLU Products, Inc. was registered as a Corporation on October 19, 

2017, under file registration number P17000084453. Exhibit 47. BLU has represented that 

“[w]hile it is true that BLU devices can be found throughout the world, BLU’s operations are 

solely based in the Southern District of Florida.” Exhibit 49 at 5-6. 

198. As an American company headquartered in Doral, Florida, the self-proclaimed 

Fastest Growing American Mobile Manufacturer designs and manufactures mobile devices and 

is a market leader in unlocked devices. Exhibit 48. BLU has sold more than 8 million devices 

throughout the United States, Latin America, and the Caribbean. Exhibit 50. BLU had revenues 

exceeding $28.5 million. See https://www.dnb.com/business-directory/company-

profiles.blu_products_inc.3bf6cc7b19ebee16dec3deb6ddf962e1.html.  
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199. In 2019, BLU Products contracted with Verizon to bring BLU devices, including 

BLU DI Products, to Verizon customers. Exhibit 51. To date, BLU has sold over 60 million of 

its devices. Exhibit 48.  

200. BLU’s Florida headquarters consists of a warehouse facility spanning over 

800,000 square feet. Exhibit 50. BLU additionally has 13 local offices between representatives 

and subsidiaries throughout the Miami, Florida, region. Id. Because BLU’s only headquarters is 

based out of Florida, on information and belief, BLU designs the BLU DI Products in Florida. 

201. On information and belief, BLU invests substantial amounts on its facilities and 

equipment in the United States that support product development, importation, pre-delivery 

activities such as product deployment, supply chain management, logistics, and distribution, as 

well as post-sale activities, including technical support, customer service, and warranty and 

repair service for the BLU DI Products. 

202. On information and belief, BLU invests significant amounts in salary and 

personnel expenses for its employees in the United States. BLU has over 300 employees. Exhibit 

50. Employees at BLU’s Florida headquarters include, among others, product technical 

managers, logistics personnel, product managers, and customer service representatives. Id. 

203. BLU engages in substantial advertising for its products, including the BLU DI 

Products. BLU invested, created, and developed, “BLU Products Media Relations” to facilitate 

its advertising for its products. For example, BLU created its own U.S. YouTube account which 

has amassed over 52,000 subscribers. Exhibit 52. BLU also has also invested in a dedicated U.S. 

Facebook page which has generated over 838,000 follows. Exhibit 53. BLU has additionally 

invested in substantial advertising via its U.S. Instagram page wherein it has posted over 3,000 

times and has cultivated over 52,000 followers. Exhibit 54. These few examples of BLU’s 
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advertising of its products, including the BLU DI Products, provide support for its substantial 

investments in labor, facilities, equipment, and research and development. 

204. BLU also invests substantial capital in advertising its individual product lines, 

including the BLU DI Products, through focused marketing advertisements. For example, BLU 

Products Media Relations, through the expenditure of significant labor, capital, and other 

resources, advertised products such as the BLU G91 PRO on the internet via online articles such 

as on a leading media software communications platform, Cision. Exhibit 55. BLU also 

advertises the BLU DI Products on BLU’s website with pages dedicated to each phone. See, e.g., 

Exhibit 56. These examples illustrate some of BLU’s significant investments in plant, 

equipment, labor, and capital relating to design, customer service, and support of the BLU DI 

Products. 

205. Additionally, BLU has also specifically advertised the BLU DI Products on its 

dedicated YouTube, Facebook, and Instagram platforms. For example, the BLU G91 PRO “First 

Look” was posted to the BLU YouTube channel on August 25, 2021. Exhibit 57. As an 

additional example, BLU specifically advertised the BLU G91 PRO on its dedicated Facebook 

platform as recently as February 8, 2022. Exhibit 58. These additional examples of BLU’s 

substantial investment in U.S. advertising substantiate and support its domestic industry. 

206. BLU has also created a series of recent announcements for its BLU DI Products.  

For example, on August 25, 2021, at 8:30am ET, BLU announced BLU SMARTPHONES 

LAUNCHES ITS LATEST GAMING FLAGSHIP SMARTPHONE – THE MUCH-AWAITED 

G91 PRO.” Exhibit 59.  Because BLU is only based out of Florida, on information and belief, all 

of the aforementioned BLU DI Products were therefore designed in Florida.  
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207.  

 BLU is 

expected to provide additional bases and supporting information under this section through 

discovery or otherwise.  Such bases and information are expected to include, without limitation, 

data on BLU’s domestic investments in labor (including information on the number of domestic 

employees, responsibilities of employees, and salaries and other costs associated with such 

employees), facilities (including expenditures on facilities), equipment (including information on 

types and cost of equipment implemented at facilities), and R&D in mobile devices, including 

the BLU DI Products. Discovery from BLU is also expected to provide bases by which to 

apportion overall domestic investments to the BLU DI Products, such as through percentage of 

sales made up by such products or through records identifying work performed. 

X. RELIEF REQUESTED 

208.  Respondents have infringed and will continue to infringe the Asserted Patents as 

specified in Section V, supra, unless the Commission prohibits the sale for importation, 

importation into and sale within the United States after importation of the Accused Products. 

209. Accordingly, Maxell respectfully requests that the Commission provide the 

following relief: 

a)  institute an immediate investigation pursuant to Section 337(b)(1) of the Tariff 

Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C. § 1337, into Respondents’ violations of 

Section 337 arising from the sale for importation into the United States, 

importation, and/or sale within the United States after importation of certain 

collapsible and portable furniture that infringe the Asserted Patents; 
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b)  schedule and conduct a hearing, pursuant to Section 337(c), for purposes of 

receiving evidence and hearing argument concerning whether Respondents have 

violated Section 337 and, following the hearing, determine that Respondents have 

violated Section 337; 

c)  issue a permanent limited exclusion order, pursuant to Section 337(d) and (f)(1), 

excluding from entry into the United States Respondents’ mobile electronic 

devices that infringe one or more claims of the Asserted Patents, including, 

without limitation, the specific Accused Products identified in this Complaint and 

the exhibits hereto; 

d)  issue permanent orders, pursuant to Section 337(f), directing Respondents to 

cease and desist from importing, selling, selling for importation, offering for sale, 

using, demonstrating, promoting, marketing, and/or advertising in the United 

States Respondents’ mobile electronics devices that infringe one or more claims 

of the Asserted Patents, including, without limitation, the specific Accused 

Products identified in this Complaint and the exhibits hereto; 

e)  impose a bond on importation and sales of infringing products during the 60-day 

Presidential review period pursuant to 19 U.S.C. § 1337(j); and 

f)  grant all such other and further relief as it deems appropriate under the law, based 

upon the facts complained of herein and as determined by the investigation. 
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UNITED STATES INTERNATIONAL TRADE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, D.C. 

In the Matter of: 

CERTAIN MOBILE ELECTRONIC DEVICES 

 

Investigation No. _________________ 

 
 

VERIFICATION OF COMPLAINT 
 

I, Tatsuya Yamamoto, declare, in accordance with 19 C.F.R. §§ 210.4 and 210.12(a), 

under penalty of perjury, that the following statements are true and correct to the best of my 

knowledge, information, and belief: 

1. I am General Manager of IP Innovation Business Unit of Complainant Maxell, 

Ltd., and am duly authorized to sign this Complaint on Maxell’s behalf. 

2. I have read the foregoing Complaint, and am aware of its contents. 

3. To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, formed after an inquiry 

reasonable under the circumstances, the allegations and other factual contentions of the 

Complaint are well-grounded in fact and have evidentiary support, or, where specifically 

identified, are likely to have evidentiary support after a reasonable opportunity for further 

investigation or discovery. 

4. To the best of my knowledge, information and belief, formed after a reasonable 

inquiry, the claims and other legal contentions set forth in the Complaint are warranted by 

existing law or by good-faith, non-frivolous argument for extension, modification, or reversal of 

existing law, or by the establishment of new law. 



 

 

5. The Complaint is not being filed for any improper purpose, such as to harass or to 

cause unnecessary delay or needless increase in the cost of the investigation or any related 

proceeding. 

Executed on March 29, 2022. 

__   _____________  __________  
Tatsuya Yamamoto 
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